Request for Quotation 
Wintering bird surveys on the south bank of the Humber Estuary, Lincolnshire
November 2023

Questions for clarification on scope and methods: 
Survey Methods
1. It would be useful to clarify whether all vantage points within a 2km square are expected to be surveyed simultaneously, thus requiring as many surveyors within a 2km square as there are vantage points. Clearly there are limitations to a single surveyor moving between vantage points within a 2km square point during the survey period, however it would also be a significant reduction in effort and therefore cost.
Response: Vantage points do not need to be surveyed simultaneously, and instead can be one after the other. However, all vantage points for a single 2km survey square should be undertaken on the same day to ensure that you are not double/ re-counting the same birds.

2. It would be useful to understand the expected time spent surveying each 2km square. Conventional low tide/core counts would often extend two hours either side of low/high tide for example.
Response: This detail should be determined by you and included within your response to the Request for Quotation (RFQ), with suitable justification. The proposal should enable an accurate record of the number of birds using the 2km square at that time.

3. It is stated that: “Surveys should cover the extremes of spring/ neap tide cycle and across the high/ low tide cycle to pick up any seasonal and tidal variation.” Please can it be confirmed that this translates to: ensuring at least one survey of the 12 required at each square covers low and high tide periods as well as spring and neap tides. OR, will a more even split be expected? This is because logistically a more even split is more ambitious when added to the weather requirements.
Response: This detail should be determined by you and included within your response to the RFQ, with suitable justification. For example, bird usage may be less likely to be influenced by the tidal state at sites further from the estuary.

4. Relating to night time surveys, it is stated: “An expert in this field should be consulted”. Please can NE define how this expertise is to be demonstrated? For example, our team includes bird ringers familiar with use of thermal imaging scopes to spot target species at night within open habitats (e.g. woodcock), is this level of knowledge acceptable?
Response: We agree that this is sufficient. Surveys carried out at night will require specialist equipment. The potential supplier should determine whether it would be more useful to use night vision scope/binoculars or thermal imagery. Detail should be included in your response to the RFQ. 


5. In relation to the nighttime surveys that are mentioned: Please could NE define if they require any thermal/infra-red footage to be taken? If so, this would be used as evidence to support the inland habitats value for roosting sites in relation to the SPA, SAC etc. If multiple VP’s are required to be surveyed throughout an evening’s high tide period; species can utilise inland habitats at an increased level more so at night than during the day. Footage would be advantageous if large roosts are identified.
Response: The aim of this project is to collect data suitable for use in Habitat Suitability Models. If you deem it useful to collect footage for this purpose, please include detail and justification in your response to the RFQ. 

6. NE state that survey completion will be set at 31st March 2024. Can NE confirm, that as the surveys will be taking place at a time during the beginning of the territory set-up/ breeding season of lapwing Vanellus vanellus, that records of this species should/ shouldn’t be included in the surveys if they are showing signs of breeding OR if these should be included to further aid in identifying the cross over period from winter to passage breeding grounds for this species.
Response: Records of this species should be included
Habitat Data 
1. It is briefly mentioned in the methodology that habitat data should be collected. Is there a list of specific attributes to be recorded (e.g. signs of management, DAFOR) or is this to be determined by us? 
Response: This detail should be determined by the potential supplier and included within your response to the Request for Quotation (RFQ). This will be discussed and agreed at a Project Initiation Meeting with the successful supplier.

